ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 2, 2012
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

UA Board of Regents
Dal e Anderson - Juneau

CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

PRESENTATI ON:  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT
REPORT BY COW SSI ONER M KE HANLEY

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

DALE ANDERSQN, Appoi nt ee

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Board
of Regents.

M KE HANLEY, Comm ssi oner

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented DEED report.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2012



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:02: 08 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Stevens, Thomas, and Mer. Senators French
and Davis arrived soon thereafter.

Confirmati on Hearing: UA Board of Regents

8:03:10 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER announced the first order of business would be
the confirmation hearing of Dale Anderson to the University of
Al aska (UA) Board of Regents. He asked M. Anderson to tell the
conm ttee about hinself and his interest in serving.

8:03: 56 AM
SENATOR FRENCH j oi ned t he neeti ng.

DALE ANDERSON, Appointee, University of Al aska Board of Regents,
said he grew up and attended school in Juneau and subsequently
graduated from Oral Roberts University in Tulsa Oklahoma. H's
wor k experience in both the public and private sector provided a
wi de body of Ilife experiences and different perspectives would
add to the board deliberations. He relayed that he had worked in
the financial services industry for the past 10 years. Before
that, he served as a legislative aide, as conmssioner for the
Limted Entry Conmssion, and as a nenber of the Cty and
Bor ough of Juneau Assenbly.

8:05: 03 AM
SENATOR DAVI S j oi ned the neeting.

SENATOR STEVENS asked what university issues or problens needed
attention in the next few years.

MR.  ANDERSON answered that he would like to build on the
progress he had seen with regard to the wuniversity working
together as a whole; in the past there appeared to be undue
conpetition between the canpuses. He would also |ike to address
graduation tinelines, because that added a lot of cost to an
education. Another area of interest was unification of prograns
and ensuring that the courses offered were neeting industry
needs and requirenents for jobs. He specifically nentioned
engi neering and fisheries jobs. The nunber of students who need
remedi al classes was another big picture issue to address.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2012



8:10: 30 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked what his views were on student aid and
whet her the state did enough to make col |l ege affordable.

MR. ANDERSON responded that it was very inportant to ensure that
getting an education was affordable for Al askan students. He
said there should be a way of providing financial aid to those
students who need it and were qualifi ed.

SENATOR FRENCH said it was troubling that young Al askans were
being saddled wth huge education debt that could not be
di scharged even though the state had anple resources to help. He
expressed hope that M. Anderson would use his position on the
Board of Regents to advocate for nore state aid for students.

MR. ANDERSON said he | ooked forward to working together on that
i ssue.

COCHAIR THOVAS asked if UA should expand its role wth
i ndustries that supply so much revenue to the state,
particularly oil, fishing, and tourism

MR. ANDERSON offered his belief that industry trade education
was one of the nost inportant aspects of the university's role.
He said he was a strong advocate of trade education and
enphasi zed the inportance of developing effective partnerships
bet ween DEED, the university, industry, and conmunities in order
to put young Al askans into the workforce.

8:17.: 02 AM

CO CHAI R MEYER found no objection and stated that M. Anderson's
name would be forwarded to the joint body for consideration. He
rem nded nmenbers that this did not reflect intent by any nmenber
to vote either for or against the confirmation of the nom nee
during the joint session.

8:17: 39 AM
At ease from8:17 a.m to 8:18.

Depart nent of Education and Early Devel opnent Report

CO CHAI R MEYER announced the next order of business would be a
report from Comm ssioner Mke Hanley. He highlighted that the
Anchorage School District recently adopted the Comon Core
Standards for curricula, and asked Comm ssioner Hanley why DEED
devel oped and was proposing different standards for Alaska. He

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2012



noted that the Chair of the House Education Committee opined
that one reason for the high dropout rate was rel evance and that
even the Comon Core Standards focus on the 30 percent of
students who go on to college. He asked if the current standards
focus on the elite 10-15 percent of students that go to college
and ignore, in particular, the 30 percent that drop out.

8.:21:11 AM

M KE HANLEY, Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED), explained that the dropout rate is conputed
on an annual basis and the graduation rate is the cohort of
ninth graders that graduate in four years. In an apples-to-
appl es conparison, the dropout rate is about 20 percent and the
graduation rate is about 68 percent. Fifth and sixth year
seniors are not counted in the graduation rate and neither are
students with severe cognitive difficulties who transition to
life skills after four years or students who receive a
certificate of achievenent.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how the dropout rate in Al aska conpared to
national statistics.

COWMWM SSI ONER HANLEY acknowl edged that Alaska had a slightly
hi gher dropout rate than the national average.

He said that when he canme to the conm ssioner position he
guestioned why Alaska was not going to adopt the Common Core
St andards, which were developed by the Council of Chief State
School Oficers (CCSSO. He learned that one of the key reasons
was that the Common Core Standards were very rigid and could
only be added to up to 15 percent. Nevertheless, the proposed
Al aska Standards heavily reference the Common Core Standards. He
said his instructions were to nake sure that the Al aska
Standards did not drop below the level of rigor represented in
the comon core. The result is that the proposed Al aska
Standards are nore simlar than not to the Common Core
St andards, but they are nore flexible.

He said the CCSSO recently conducted a side-by-side analysis of
the Al aska Standards and the Conmon Core Standards and agreed
that they were very simlar and equal in rigor. The standards
are sufficiently simlar that Al aska should be able to access
commercial curricula and assessnments that are aligned with and
devel oped for the common core.

COW SS|I ONER HANLEY revi ewed sone of the differences between the
two standards. Al aska Standards have patterning skills in math

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2012



in first and second grade instead of starting at third grade
Sonme of the common core exanples were changed to be nore
relevant to Al askans; travel by sled dog, for exanple, instead
of by trolley. He enphasized that the standards are essentially
t he sane, but the Al aska Standards provide flexibility.

8. 27:47 AM

COCHAIR MEYER asked if adopting the national st andar ds
precl uded the Anchorage School District from naking any changes,
and if that was cause for concern.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY answered that it was not a concern because
every school district was responsible for aligning its curricula
to the state standards and assessing according those standards.
He noted that three other school districts were noving towards
t he Common Core Standards.

CO CHAIR MEYER asked if business, unions, and the trades were
represented when the state devel oped its standards.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said that DEED solicited input from about 40
organi zati ons across the state and about six actually stuck wth
it provided ideas. DEED sent the standards to the state board in
Decenber and asked for an extended public comrent period.
Meetings are scheduled statewi de so that businesses can review
the standards and provide input, all of which will be presented
to the State Board of Educati on.

8:32: 04 AM

SENATOR DAVIS said it was her understanding that a state that
did not adopt the Common Core Standards would be precluded from
recei ving any assessnent data.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said DEED attends the neetings of the
consortia, but cannot vote in the developnment of assessnents
because Alaska is not a comon core state. He said he fully
anticipates that the state will be able to access that data
because the program was devel oped with federal funds for states
to use.

SENATOR DAVI S questioned why DEED did not adopt the Comron Core
Standards if the two were substantially simlar and the state
could nake 15 percent upward changes. She noted that Al aska was
in the small mnority of states that had not adopted the
nati onal standards.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2012



COWMWM SSI ONER HANLEY acknow edged that Al aska was one of five
states that had not adopted the Common Core Standards. DEED felt
the changes, such as including patterning in the first and
second grades were inportant, but they were not the 15 percent
upward changes. He reiterated his belief that Al aska would have
access to everything that the common core curricula would offer
and all ow adjustnents to the standards as needed.

SENATOR DAVIS asked if the standards would be inplenmented in
2015.

COMM SSI ONER HANLEY responded that if the standards were adopted
in June, they would go to the school districts in the fall; the
sanme tine that the Anchorage School District would inplenent the
Common Core Standards.

SENATOR DAVIS asked what support the teachers and staff had
received to hel p adapt to the new standards.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said it was difficult to put funding in
pl ace for training when the standards had yet to be adopted, but
he did agree that it was critical to fund training for teachers
statewi de. The new standards raised the bar for both students
and teachers.

8:37:10 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS reviewed the high school mathenmatics standards
that included know edge of the properties of dilation, and
enphasi zed the inportance of rel evance.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said that concern was one reason that DEED
was doing so much focused work with enpl oyers. He noted that the
standards that had a plus alongside indicated it was a standard
for those students who intend to continue in a particular track.
He acknow edged that DEED nay add a few nore pluses, but the
strength of the standards was that they were designed for
alignnent for K-12 and they would provide nore than base skills
for one career path.

8:42: 52 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS said he understood the need to set standards
but he hoped that they would be practical and not be a cause for
students to becone di scouraged.

COM SSI ONER HANLEY said rel evance cones in the classroom with

the curriculum The standards represent the target and the
curriculumis the vehicle for attaining the goal.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2012



SENATOR FRENCH asked who had the final say on adopting the
st andar ds.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY replied the State Board of Educati on.
SENATOR FRENCH asked when the deci si on woul d be nade.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY answered that the |ast public coment would
be May 17 and the board neeting would be on June 8 and 9.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if he thought the state board woul d adopt
standards that were different than the Anchorage standards, for
exanpl e.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY responded that the Anchorage School District
was adopting the Common Core Standards and he anticipated that
the State Board of Education would nmake a decision on whether or
not to adopt the proposed Al aska Standards.

SENATOR STEVENS cautioned that attenpts to "Al askanize" the
standards may be nore difficult than anticipated. For exanple
changi ng a question about trollies to one about sled dogs nay be
equal ly inconprehensible to sonme students. Kids in Kodiak may
not understand either reference.

8:47:26 AM

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked if the University of Al aska was adapting
its teacher certification prograns to align with the proposed
Al aska St andar ds.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY answered that the DEED was working directly
with the university, and President Ganble had voiced support.
The Institute of Social and Econom c Research (CAEPR) at the
university was vetting the proposed Al aska standards, conparing
them to the credit-bearing courses required in the university's
two and four-year programs. The State Board of Education was
scheduled to neet wth the Board of Regents in June and
conversations about teacher preparation prograns were on the
agenda.

SENATOR DAVI S asked how many students there were statew de.
COW SS|I ONER HANLEY answered that there were about 130, 000.

CO- CHAI R MEYER asked if the distinction of the 30 percent nunber
was that it included both students who dropped out of school and

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2012



students who for a variety of reasons did not receive a diplom
after four years.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said yes. He added that he views fifth and
sixth year seniors as success stories, but they are not counted
in the graduation rate.

SENATOR DAVIS asked if the public comments would be avail able
for review

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY answer ed yes.

8:51:22 AM
CO CHAIR MEYER nentioned the proposal the commttee heard from
CAEPR at the last neeting, and asked if the adm nistration m ght
be interested in funding a UA Institute of Social and Econom c
Research (ISER) study to look at different ways to fund
educati on.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said he reviewed the testinony and handouts
and was concerned that the study suggested a formnulaic approach
that did not include new research, because it mght not give the
right picture. He relayed that he was neeting with Dr. Hirshberg
today and intended to raise those questions. He offered to
provi de feedback after the neeting.

CO CHAIR MEYER said the commttee would |i ke the feedback.
8:55:11 AM
COCHAIR MEYER found no further questions or coments and

adjourned the Senate Education Standing Commttee neeting at
8:55 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2012



